
 

  CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

O F F I C E  O F  T H E  C I T Y  C L E R K  
251 W. PLANT STREET 

WINTER GARDEN, FL 34787 
TEL: (407) 656-4111 Ext. 2254 • FAX (407) 656-4952 

          

 
 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
CITY COMMISSION 

June 14, 2007 
 
A REGULAR MEETING of the Winter Garden City Commission was called to order by 
Mayor Jack Quesinberry at 6:30 p.m. at Tanner Hall, 29 W. Garden Avenue, Winter 
Garden, Florida.  The invocation and Pledge of Allegiance were given. 
 
Present:   Mayor Jack Quesinberry, Commissioners Harold L. Bouler, Bob Buchanan, H. 

Gerald Jowers and Colin Sharman  
 
Also Present:  City Manager Mike Bollhoefer, City Attorney A. Kurt Ardaman, Assistant 
City Manager Marshall Robertson, City Clerk Kathy Golden, Police Chief George Brennan, 
Trailer City Manager Johnny Clark, Finance Director Brian Strobeck, Human Resources 
Director Frank Gilbert, Fire Chief John Williamson, Recreation Director Jay Conn, 
Information Technology Director Bob Reilly, Planning Director Ed Williams, Building 
Official Willie Herbert, Assistant City Engineer Mike Kelley,  Assistant to the City 
Manager for Public Works Don Cochran, and West Orange Times reporter Michael Laval 
 
1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Motion by Commissioner Jowers to approve the regular meeting minutes of May 
24, 2007 as submitted.  Seconded by Commissioner Sharman and carried 
unanimously 5-0.  

 
2. PUBLIC WORKSHOP ON PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENTS 

Mayor Quesinberry stated that the City Commission has encouraged Winter Garden 
residents to come and participate on any of their issues and opened the public 
workshop. 
 
Jerry Carris, 347 Bayside Avenue, Winter Garden, Florida, stated that the current 
charter does not have any rules of order that it follows and suggested adopting Robert’s 
Rules of Order.  Mayor Quesinberry stated that the City Commission has always relied 
on the attorney when issues such as rules of order arise. 
 
City Attorney Ardaman stated that it is a good suggestion that the City Commission 
consider rules by which it should govern meetings.  The concern over adopting Robert’s 
Rules of Order is that there are many editions of Robert’s Rules of Order.  It is very 
comprehensive and has provisions that are inconsistent with the way the City of Winter 
Garden operates by means of the charter and code.  As a wholesale adoption, he thinks 
it creates some problems for the City.  He stated that a resolution was presented to the 
City Commission within the last year that would use important provisions of Robert’s 
Rules of Order with modifications that would make it fit within the City’s codes.  He 



City of Winter Garden Commission meeting minutes 
June 14, 2007 
Page 2  
 
 

cautioned against including the entire Robert’s Rules of Order in the charter, but stated 
that Mr. Carris raised a good point about considering some rules that the City could 
adopt by resolution at any time. 
 
Theo Graham, 213 West Tilden Street, Winter Garden, Florida, stated in the West 
Orange Times last week there was an article about tonight’s meeting as well as a City 
advertisement.  He stated that this week the West Orange Times did not have anything 
regarding the workshop for the charter.  There is a good crowd present but he would 
have liked to see a lot more.  He would like the West Orange Times to give the City a 
little more publicity when these meeting are going to be held. 
 
Mr. Graham stated that he wanted to speak on the issue of living in your district in order 
to run for the City Commission.  If this had been the case, he would have not been able 
to run for 14 years.  He served the City Commission for 20 years and until this last 
district revision, it was the first time that he has lived in his district in 14 of those years.  
The first couple of times he ran for office the elections were city-wide.  He would 
prefer to see it open to anyone city-wide.  When he was in office, it did not make any 
difference what district a resident was from in order for him to refer their problem to the 
City Manager who would get the problem resolved.  He commended City Manager 
Bollhoefer for his timely response to problems he reported to him. 
 
Mayor Quesinberry stated that this issue was resolved at the last meeting, with the City 
Commission deciding that the candidate did not have to live in his or her district in 
order to run. 
 
Commissioner Bouler stated that he differs with everyone on this issue and read Section 
12, Qualifications for Candidates.  He stated that he feels that the candidate should live 
in the district that they represent.  Maybe at one time, when this City had residents 
totaling 10 or 12 thousand, it may have been applicable for the candidate to be qualified 
in a district that they were not living in.  This City has grown tremendously and will 
continue to grow.  He gave an example of someone living in the Stoneybrook West area 
not caring very much about what happens in the Chapin Station area.  He does realize 
that a Commissioner also represents the entire City, so if a resident in any other district 
approaches you about a problem, you should as a City Commissioner do the best you 
can to address that problem.  Residents want their Commissioners to live in their district 
and speak out on relative problems within their district and understand the uniqueness 
of the respective district and what they want changed.   
 
Mayor Quesinberry expressed that maybe that is a question to be asked of the registered 
voters.  Is this issue one of the questions for the ballot?  City Attorney Ardaman replied 
that right now the blackline version for consideration by the voters will not address this 
issue.  He confirmed that the way that the charter reads right now is that you do not 
have to live in your district.  If you want to give the voters a chance to change that, then 
we will need to put language on the ballot with the proposed language.  The thought is 
for the City Commission to take public input so the Commission can decide what will 
be on the ballot. 



City of Winter Garden Commission meeting minutes 
June 14, 2007 
Page 3  
 
 

 
Mayor Quesinberry stated that he felt that this was one of the items that is controversial 
and may be considered as one of the questions. 
 
Commissioner Jowers added that out of the 10 years he has served on the City 
Commission, he has only lived in his district for four years and has served everyone to 
the best of his ability.  The City Commissioners all have an open door policy.  He stated 
that the United States Federal Courts Judge [in a prior court case] wrote his very wise 
decision that there would be single district representatives, but anyone from any district 
could run in any district.  He stated that he believes that if a resident in that district is 
strong enough, there is no one capable of taking his or her seat if they have done their 
job correctly.  He does not feel that the City Commission should be legislating out any 
registered voter from running from any seat in any district.  The City is just not big 
enough yet. 
 
Commissioner Buchanan stated that he has received feedback from residents on both 
sides of this issue and he feels that the residents who really do care are the ones who get 
out and vote.  He thinks that they should be allowed to vote on the issue as a way to let 
the Commissioners know how they feel.  
 
Jim Gustino, 13914 Eylewood Drive, Winter Garden, Florida, of the Stoneybrook West 
subdivision, stated that he would like to advocate in favor of a couple of items that he 
does not believe appear in this drafted charter.  There is a diverse array of views on this 
issue and it should be submitted to the constituents for a decision.  He personally thinks 
there is wisdom in having candidates reside in the district they want to represent.  For 
reasons such as being better connected, more conversant with the neighborhoods and 
issues as opposed to someone living in a remote location.   
 
He suggested modifying the present proposed charter verbiage regarding the removal of 
a City Manager.  He commended current City Manager Bollhoefer, but stated that he is 
concerned that if the City has a situation in which a 3-2 vote could remove a City 
Manager, there may be a system in place that could succumb to political pressures.  The 
decision to hire, maintain, or terminate a City Manager should not become a politicized 
decision, in his opinion, and there should be at least a 4-1 vote to remove the City 
Manager. 
 
Mayor Quesinberry identified previous discussion regarding the effect redistricting 
would have on a sitting elected official whose district boundaries were redrawn and 
they no longer reside in their district.  This would only allow them to serve out their 
term.  They could not run for the same seat without relocating is what he objected to.  
Legal counsel advised that language could not drafted for this exception. 
 
Barbara Muzeni, 1143 Portmoor Way, Winter Garden, Florida, stated that she was a 
member of the Charter Review Committee and wanted to give the City Commission 
some of her impressions on the discussions they had.  One issue the Committee felt 
very strongly about is that the Commissioners should live in the district they represent.  



City of Winter Garden Commission meeting minutes 
June 14, 2007 
Page 4  
 
 

She explained that language was added providing that if redistricting should occur, the 
sitting Commissioner would remain until the next election.  At that time, the 
Commissioner could run in the new district or choose to move to run in the prior district 
giving the serving Commissioner the option. 
 
The other issue about redistricting is that they added as an option for consideration by 
the City Commission it that it be done, at minimum, with the census and when any 
district becomes larger than 50 percent of the smallest district.  The Charter Review 
Committee recommended that a committee of citizens be formed to redraw the districts.  
This concept takes redistricting out of the hands of the City Commission so you do not 
have to worry about cutting yourselves out of your district.  She reiterated that she 
wanted to make the Commission aware of how important the Charter Review 
Committee felt that the Commissioner serve within the district where they lived. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Jowers to leave the Charter language as it is.  City 
Attorney Ardaman advised that a motion is not needed to keep what we already have, 
only if a change is needed.  Motion was withdrawn. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Bouler to change the language to put on the ballot, that a 
candidate must live in the district that they represent.  Seconded by Commissioner 
Sharman and carried 3-2, opposed by Commissioner Jowers and Mayor 
Quesinberry. 
 
City Manager Bollhoefer sought clarification on the next steps regarding the Charter 
amendment, as no schedule had been set.  He asked if the City Commission wanted 
further discussion or did they want the Attorney to take this and draft an ordinance, or 
take this change and review this issue one last time and then draft the ordinance.  City 
Attorney Ardaman advised that he is ready to craft the ordinance for consideration by 
the City Commission. 
 
Mayor Quesinberry thanked the citizens for their public input and the Charter Review 
Committee for their work. 
 

3. PRESENTATION 
Betty Anne Griffin presented a donation of $2,000 from the Bloom ‘N Grow Garden 
Society to the City of Winter Garden.  This donation is to be used on park improvement 
projects and was accepted by Recreation Director Jay Conn. 
 

4. FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING OF PROPOSED ORDINANCES 
A. Ordinance 07-22:  AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 

OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 88 OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES, CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR THE 
ASSESSMENT OF COSTS, EXPENSES AND FEES INCURRED BY THE CITY OF 
WINTER GARDEN IN REVIEWING REQUESTS RELATING TO DEVELOPMENT; 
PROVIDING FOR FEE SCHEDULES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE  



City of Winter Garden Commission meeting minutes 
June 14, 2007 
Page 5  
 
 

City Attorney Ardaman read Ordinance 07-22 by title only.  Mayor Quesinberry 
opened the public hearing; hearing and seeing none, he closed the public hearing.  
Motion by Commissioner Bouler to postpone Ordinance 07-22 until June 28, 
2007 at 6:30 p.m.  Seconded by Commissioner Buchanan and carried 
unanimously 5-0. 

 
5. SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING OF PROPOSED ORDINANCES 

A. Ordinance 05-56: AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF WINTER 
GARDEN'S COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TO COMPLY WITH THE WEKIVA 
PARKWAY AND PROTECTION ACT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
City Attorney Ardaman read Ordinance 05-56 by title only.  Mayor Quesinberry 
opened the public hearing; hearing and seeing none, he closed the public hearing.  
City Planner Williams stated that staff recommends approval.  Motion by 
Commissioner Sharman to adopt Ordinance 05-56.  Seconded by 
Commissioner Jowers and carried unanimously 5-0. 

 
B. Ordinance 07-21:  AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 

FLORIDA, AMENDING THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN FISCAL YEAR 2006-2007 
BUDGET; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE  
City Attorney Ardaman read Ordinance 07-21 by title and listed the revenues and 
expenses as follows: 

REVENUES 
 General Fund $ (2,097,528)    
 Community Redevelopment Agency Fund 124,154    
 Local Option Gas Tax Fund 488,224 
 General Impact Fee Fund 1,098,070   
 Transportation Impact Fee-South of Turnpike Fund (994,006) 
 Transportation Impact Fee-OOCEA Pledge Fund 120,638 
 Transportation Impact Fee-CR545 Special Benefit Area Fund - 
 Transportation Impact Fee-General Fund 2,934,700 
 Police and Fire Premium Tax Trust Fund 50,000 
 Debt Service Fund (146,829) 
 New City Hall Capital Project Fund 720,314    
 Utility Operating Fund 361,978 
 Utility Impact Fee Fund 87,906 
 Utility Renewal and Replacement Fund 37,798    
 Stormwater Fund 109,377 
 Trailer City Fund           10,504 
  Total          $2,905,300 

 
Mr. Ardaman stated that the expenses are identical to the revenue line item also 
totaling $2,905,300.  Mayor Quesinberry opened the public hearing; hearing and 
seeing none, he closed the public hearing.  Motion by Commissioner Bouler to 
adopt Ordinance 07-21, amending the fiscal year 2006-2007 budget for mid-
year adjustments.  Seconded by Commissioner Sharman and carried 
unanimously 5-0. 
 



City of Winter Garden Commission meeting minutes 
June 14, 2007 
Page 6  
 
 
6. REGULAR BUSINESS 

A. Recommendation to approve a development agreement for Hickory Hammock 
Subdivision located on Marsh Road 
City Planner Williams stated that this agreement provides for a number of 
conditions and obligations for the developers addressing both Marsh Road 
improvements and CR 545.  Staff has reviewed this and recommends approval.  The 
developer is here to express that he concurs with the agreement.  Tom Gillette, 
Project Manager with SouthStar Developers, stated that they are in full agreement.  
City Attorney Ardaman stated that he has provided the City Commission with the 
exhibits that are separate from the document and are difficult to read so the City has 
asked the developer to provide clear copies of the exhibits which will be approved, 
consistent with what the City Commission has been presented in their agenda 
packages before the execution of the document.  Motion by Commissioner Jowers 
to approve a development agreement for Hickory Hammock Subdivision 
located on Marsh Road.  Seconded by Commissioner Sharman. 
 
Commissioner Buchanan asked what is in place to protect the City on this 
Community Development District (CDD).  Mr. Williams stated that the agreement 
allows both the developer and the CDD to meet certain obligations.  If the CDD did 
not meet those obligations, they would fall back onto the developer.  He stated that 
it is a double guarantee.  He explained that the CDD is primarily a funding 
mechanism and the obligation goes to the developer, should the CDD not fund those 
improvements.  There is also the provision that if the CDD does not meet its 
obligations, the City would stop issuing permits.  There was discussion on the 
powers of the CDD and the protection for the City.  Mr. Williams gave a brief 
history on CDDs.  Motion carried unanimously 5-0. 

 
B. Recommendation to approve a Right-of-Way Maintenance Agreement with 

Sembler Winter Garden Partnership #1, Ltd., and Winter Garden Village at 
Fowler Groves Property Owners’ Association 
City Planner Williams stated that this agreement addresses specific provisions on 
responsibility for the landscaping, irrigation and signage and other improvements 
along other various right-of-ways within the Mall.  He explained that when this 
agreement is entered into, all of the issues and concerns have been addressed and 
then the final plat can be reviewed.  Without this agreement, the final plat would not 
be appropriate.  Rebecca Furman, representative of the Sembler Company, stated 
that they agree with the Right-of-Way Maintenance Agreement and are available for 
any questions.  Commissioner Sharman asked if the Sembler Company also agrees 
with all of staff’s recommendations.  Ms. Furman agreed stating the staff 
recommendations are added to the plat which is the next item on the agenda.  
Motion by Commissioner Bouler to approve a Right-of-Way Maintenance 
Agreement with Sembler Winter Garden Partnership #1, Ltd., and Winter 
Garden Village at Fowler Groves Property Owners’ Association.  Seconded by 
Commissioner Buchanan and carried unanimously 5-0. 

 



City of Winter Garden Commission meeting minutes 
June 14, 2007 
Page 7  
 
 

C. Recommendation to approve the final plat for Winter Garden Village at 
Fowler Groves with conditions  
City Planner Williams stated that now with the right-of-way maintenance agreement 
in place, staff does recommend approval of the final plat and request authorization 
for the Mayor to sign it.  Motion by Commissioner Jowers to approve the final 
plat for Winter Garden Village at Fowler Groves subject to the conditions as 
stated in the Engineering memorandum of May 16, 2007, the Legal 
Department’s letter dated May 16, 2007, and solutions, methodology, and 
conditions outlined in the series of e-mails between the City Staff and the 
Sembler Company (see attached).  Seconded by Commissioner Bouler and 
carried unanimously 5-0. 

 
D. Application to sell sparklers under a temporary tent in the K-Mart shopping 

center June 20, 2007 to July 5, 2007  
Mayor Quesinberry asked if there were any building or fire codes against this 
request at this point.  Building Official Herbert responded no, both the Fire Chief 
and the Police Chief have signified their approval for this request. 
 
Mark Stratton, President of First American Fireworks Company, stated that they 
will abide by the rules of the City, State, and County.  He stated that they have had 
all of their permits and have done business within the City of Winter Garden for 
many years.  Motion by Commissioner Buchanan to approve the selling 
sparklers under a temporary tent in the K-Mart shopping center June 20, 2007 
to July 5, 2007.  Seconded by Commissioner Jowers and carried unanimously 
5-0. 

 
E. Recommendation  to reconsider the sale of city-owned real property located at 

848 East Plant Street to R. C. Stevens for $950,000 
Commissioner Jowers asked what is being done on the environmental cleanup.  City 
Manager Bollhoefer responded that the City is still waiting for a response from the 
State.  The recommended plan has been sent to the State and the City is waiting for 
comments from the State to see if they agree to the plan submitted by Andreyev 
Engineering.  Mr. Bollhoefer stated that the City is hoping to get these comments in 
the near future, but stated that when dealing with the Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection (FDEP), it is not known when the City will get these 
comments back.  The reason that staff has brought this back to the City Commission 
is because it appears R. C. Stevens was considering another site.  At the February 8, 
2007 meeting, there was concern about the appraisal on the property and the 
cleanup.  The City has received another appraisal and those amounts are included in 
the agenda package, but no answer has been received from the FDEP.  
Commissioner Jowers stated that he thought the appraisal was high and thought that 
the property was probably more around $1.2 million.  He would be happy to see Mr. 
Stevens develop in Winter Garden, but as a Commissioner, he has an obligation to 
his constituents to see that the City does not lose any money on this.  He knows 
what he is being shown in writing, but also knows what environmental cleanups can 
cost. 



City of Winter Garden Commission meeting minutes 
June 14, 2007 
Page 8  
 
 

 
Mayor Quesinberry pointed out that this property was purchased with Community 
Redevelopment Agency (CRA) funds and the City needs the money returned to 
purchase other property to develop Plant Street to State Road 429 which is currently 
in the City’s plan.  Commissioner Jowers expressed his views on proper fiscal 
responsibility and noted it is a beautiful project.  Commissioner Sharman stated that 
it is wise to know all of the facts before making a decision.   
 
Commissioner Buchanan asked if the City would be responsible for the cleanup 
whether or not someone purchased the property.  Mr. Bollhoefer replied yes.  
Commissioner Buchanan stated that it would be wiser to allow a development to go 
in and start making money on it rather than cleaning it up to just sit vacant when the 
City has to clean it up regardless.  
 
Mr. Bollhoefer gave a history of the appraisals done on the property and explained 
that the goal of the City is redevelopment to spur on other development in the East 
Plant Street area.   
 
There was further discussion on the unknown cost of the cleanup until FDEP returns 
their comments.  Mr. Bollhoefer stated that the reason it is being brought back to the 
City Commission is because the developer has been trying to purchase this property 
from the City of Winter Garden for over two years.  They have reached a point that 
if the City Commission decides to not negotiate, they will have to go to an 
alternative site for their project.  Commissioner Jowers stated that he would hate to 
rush to a judgment to find ourselves retroactively in the mud.  Commissioner 
Sharman stated that it also makes it difficult to make a decision on this issue when 
their offer is below a dated appraisal and a current appraisal.  He stated that we have 
to be responsible especially with the tax cuts coming.  We have to watch every 
single dollar so we can provide the most benefit for our citizens and noted the 
estimated tax revenue to the City is $32,000 a year. 
 
Tim Keating, an owner of R. C. Stevens Construction, stated that he is at his wits 
end.  He has been trying to do this for two years and has already sold a portion of 
his property and stated that they are moving and cannot keep waiting.  He stated that 
the City has been working on this for two years and so has he.  He explained that 
they have been in business for over 80 years and would like to put it at the 848 East 
Plant Street location and thinks it is a good location.  He stated that he cannot keep 
waiting to move his business.  He asked Mr. Bollhoefer to put it on the agenda 
because he has to move forward.  Motion by Mayor Quesinberry to approve the 
sale of city-owned real property located at 848 East Plant Street to R. C. 
Stevens for $950,000.  Seconded by Commissioner Buchanan.   
 
Commissioner Sharman asked what the City’s purchase price of the property was.  
Mr. Bollhoefer responded that the purchase price was $712,901 which included 
legal fees, closing costs, and an additional piece of adjacent property with portions 



City of Winter Garden Commission meeting minutes 
June 14, 2007 
Page 9  
 
 

of right-of-way being taken by the City valued at $170,000.  Motion carried 3-2, 
opposed Commissioners Jowers and Sharman. 

 
7. MATTERS FROM CITIZENS 

Kim Hudson, 1515 East Spring Ridge Circle, Winter Garden, Florida, explained that 
she recently addressed the Orange County School Board regarding resident opposition 
to rezoning their children from Winter Garden schools to Ocoee and to give them a 
petition signed by Winter Garden residents that they want the feeder patterns followed 
and further identified that the City of Winter Garden also supported the plan as 
evidenced by a letter sent to the School Board back in January 2007 as she had 
requested.  She was horribly embarrassed to later find out that the City of Winter 
Garden improperly rescinded the original letter and the fact she was never even 
contacted even though she was instrumental in the first letter being written.  She 
emphasized that once the City makes a decision, they should stand behind that decision.  
A majority of residents do want their children to go to schools in their community. 
 

8. MATTERS FROM CITY ATTORNEY – Attorney Ardaman had no items. 
 

9. MATTERS FROM CITY MANAGER  
A. Revised donation form 

Mr. Bollhoefer stated that the addition is on page two that includes a provision for 
specific details on how the donation would benefit the citizens of Winter Garden.  
Commissioner Sharman suggested adding criteria so applicants can understand why 
their request can be denied by the City Commission.  Mr. Bollhoefer replied that he 
would like to include the suggested criteria perhaps in October because the fund is 
so low he doesn’t feel it is a pressing issue at this time.  It was the consensus of the 
City Commission to implement the revised donation form.  
 

• Lightning Danger at Little League Fields 
Mr. Bollhoefer stated that several months ago Mr. Derek Blakeslee came to the City 
with concerns about lightning and the danger it poses at our Little League fields.  
Sometimes as the children are playing baseball, the coaches are so involved in the 
game they don’t want to stop the game because of lightning and it is often difficult 
for the umpires to stop the game.  Many fields are utilizing lightning detectors.  He 
stated that Mr. Blakeslee came up with a proposal that if the City would install these 
devices at baseball fields, his organization, the Bond Foundation, would pay half of 
the cost.  Staff found a company that could install them for approximately $30,000.  
Mr. Bollhoefer stated that he informed Mr. Blakeslee of the cost and Mr. 
Blakeslee’s foundation has offered to pay half, up to $15,000, for all the parks.   
 
Derek Blakeslee, 230 North Highland Avenue, Winter Garden, Florida, stated that 
this is important and gave an example of someone playing golf and lightning begins 
striking around them, an alarm would sound and the participants would head back to 
the clubhouse.  All of our parks experience lightning strikes and they are depending 
upon someone to stop the game.  A system would be in place whereby a horn would 
go off and everyone gets off the field until the second horn blows allowing them 



City of Winter Garden Commission meeting minutes 
June 14, 2007 
Page 10  
 
 

back onto the field.  This is a safety issue that the City cannot really be without.  It 
is important to have this at the other parks as well and his foundation is enthused to 
actually bring money back to the City by helping to get this in place. 
 
Commissioner Sharman asked if anyone from the Winter Garden Little League 
weighed in on this issue.  Mr. Blakeslee stated that the Little League actually has a 
portable system they are using and is used only for that site.  By using this system it 
can be mounted at the Little League field and will be heard by all of the surrounding 
fields at that location.  There was discussion on these alarms being set on a timer for 
daytime hours only. 
 
Mr. Bollhoefer stated that this organization has done other work at City fields in the 
past and has helped refurbish fields.  Commissioner Bouler asked for clarification 
on which fields or was it for all fields.  Mr. Bollhoefer responded they will pay half 
of the total cost up to $15,000 to include Zanders Park, Veterans Park, and Newton 
Park. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Sharman to put the lightning indication systems at 
all of the parks as indicated by the City Manager.  Seconded by Commissioner 
Buchanan. 
 
Commissioner Bouler asked about including the Mildred Dixon Center.  Mr. 
Bollhoefer stated that the Center is in unincorporated Orange County.  
Commissioner Bouler stated that there are still a lot of children at that facility.  Mr. 
Bollhoefer stated that he would contact the County and let them know what the City 
is doing so they can consider participating.  Motion carried unanimously 5-0. 
 

• Community Action Board vacant seat 
Mr. Bollhoefer stated that there is a vacant seat on the Community Action Board 
and has requested a nomination from the City Commission.  Mayor Quesinberry 
stated that the City had someone who is now unable to make it to the meetings and 
needs someone who will be able to attend.  Commissioner Bouler volunteered for 
the appointment.  Motion by Commissioner Sharman to appoint Commissioner 
Bouler as the representative on the County Community Action Board.  
Seconded by Commissioner Jowers and carried unanimously 5-0. 
 

• 4th of July Parade 
Mr. Bollhoefer asked Recreation Director Conn to address the City Commission on 
this issue.  Mr. Conn stated that the Masonic Lodge and the Heritage Society have 
asked for permission to conduct the children’s 4th of July parade on Plant Street.  
They are asking for permission to close the street for an hour on that morning.  
Motion by Commissioner Buchanan to approve the closing of downtown Plant 
Street for the 4th of July Parade.  Seconded by Commissioner Jowers and 
carried unanimously 5-0. 

 
• Florida League of Cities Annual Conference 



City of Winter Garden Commission meeting minutes 
June 14, 2007 
Page 11  
 
 

Mr. Bollhoefer stated that is that time of the year when the Florida League of Cities 
has its annual conference and they need to know who the voting delegate will be.  
The conference will be held at the Orlando Marriott, August 16 - 18, 2007.  
Commissioner Buchanan stated that he would like to attend.  Mr. Bollhoefer stated 
that everyone is able to go, but someone needs to be voted as the designated voting 
delegate.  It was the consensus of the City Commission to appoint Commissioner 
Buchanan as the voting delegate at this conference.  Mr. Bollhoefer asked the City 
Commissioners to contact his office if they wanted to attend the conference. 
 

• New Fire Department Logo 
Mr. Bollhoefer recognized Fire Chief Williamson to address the City Commission 
about their new emblem.  Mr. Williamson stated that they have redesigned their Fire 
Department logo and explained that most fire departments have a logo that takes the 
form of a Maltese cross, that it was a badge of honor symbolizing protection.  He 
explained that the firefighter who wears this cross is willing to lay down his or her 
life for the citizens just as the crusaders sacrificed their lives for their fellow man so 
many years ago.  Mr. Williamson had Deputy Chief McGrew display prior Maltese 
crosses of the City of Winter Garden and recognized Deputy Chief McGrew for his 
contribution to the design of the new logo. 
 
Deputy Chief McGrew stated that he did not want to take all the credit for this 
design and recognized Andy Crabtree and Dan Yates of LyonTree Productions for 
bringing the idea to life.  He then described and explained the design of the new 
emblem and its significance to Winter Garden. 
 
Fire Chief Williamson presented each Commissioner with a shirt displaying their 
name and the new Fire Department emblem. 
 

• Opening of Daniels Road 
Mr. Bollhoefer announced that Daniels Road is scheduled to reopen on July 5, 2007 
and that the Sembler Shopping Center will be having their grand opening on 
November 9, 2007, but several of the stores will be opening before then. 

 
10. MATTERS FROM MAYOR AND COMMISSIONERS 

 
Mayor Quesinberry   
Mayor Quesinberry handed out to the City Commission a salary survey of some Florida 
city managers.  He stated that our City Manager is listed at the bottom of the list.  He 
indicated that the Mr. Bollhoefer had been through a lot lately and has been attending 
homeowner association meetings and other functions.  Even if City Manager Bollhoefer 
was given an 18 percent raise, he still would not be at the average wage of the city 
managers listed.  Winter Garden is not trying to keep up with the highest paid managers 
but it is ridiculous what we are paying in comparison to those listed.  He stated an 18 
percent increase would bring him to the average.  Mayor Quesinberry proposed giving 
the City Manager an 18 percent raise beginning July 1, 2007.  At the next review, a 
three percent raise should put him within the average of city managers.  Motion by 



City of Winter Garden Commission meeting minutes 
June 14, 2007 
Page 12  
 
 

Commissioner Buchanan to approve a salary increase of 18 percent for City 
Manager Bollhoefer effective July 1, 2007.  Seconded by Commissioner Jowers 
and carried unanimously 5-0. 
 
Commissioner Sharman   
Commissioner Sharman stated that he has had some complaints with reference to noise 
and will be reviewing the noise ordinance.  He will get with the City Manager for 
additional information so he could get back to the citizens.  City Manager Bollhoefer 
advised that he and the City Attorney have been reviewing the noise ordinance and 
found that there are some holes in it. 
 
He stated that he has also received some complaints about the cut-through for piping on 
CR 535 South and said that some newer ones need attention. 
 
Commissioner Bouler  
Commissioner Bouler shared that it has been quite an experience being on this side of 
the table as a Commissioner.  He stated that he has been a resident for three years and 
this position is much more challenging.  When he was elected for this position, one of 
his slogans was “change.”  He announced a change that is happening in the East Winter 
Garden area and that there is new director at the Maxey Center.  He recognized, 
welcomed, and introduced Ms. Bridgette Donaldson. 
 
He stated that he had the opportunity to attend a homeowners’ association meeting and 
encouraged all of the City Commissioners to attend them in their district because they 
can be very enlightening and a good way to know your constituents. 
 
Commissioner Buchanan 
Commissioner Buchanan shared that he attended the Institute for Elected Officials as 
presented by the Florida League of Cities.  They covered several different categories of 
how the Commission and different forms of government work and he recommends this 
to anyone on a quasi-judicial governing body. 
 

The meeting adjourned at 8:02 p.m. 
APPROVED: 

 
 
       _/S/____________________________ 
       MAYOR JACK QUESINBERRY 
ATTEST: 
 
_/S/_________________________ 
City Clerk Kathy Golden, CMC 


